
 
 
 
 

 
TOWN BOARD AGENDA 

REGULAR MEETING 
(All items listed for discussion and possible action) 

 

                                                 VIRTUAL MEETING 
 

Thursday, September 2, 2021 
6:30 p.m. 

 
 
 

1. Call to Order 
 

2. Roll Call of Board Members 
 

3. Audience Participation Period (limit 4 minutes per speaker) 
 

4. Consent Agenda 
a. Approval of Minutes – August 19, 2021 
 

5. For Possible Action 
a. Resolution 2021-07 Revising the Rules of Procedure for the Town of Foxfield, 

Colorado 
 

6. For Discussion 
*Public comment will be taken before and after Board discussion 

a. Draft Resolution Regarding Animal Control Fees 
b. Text Messaging Options  
c. Open Space Clean Up 

 
7. Reports  
        a.  Mayor 
        b.  Members of Town Board 
        c.  Staff 
 
8. Future Agenda Items 
 
9. Adjournment 

 



 
 

MINUTES             
 

BOARD OF TRUSTEES MEETING 
 

August 19, 2021 
 

 
Call to Order/Roll Call 
The virtual meeting was called to order at 6:30 p.m. via Zoom. 
 
The following Trustees were present:  Amy Snell-Johnson, Debby Farreau, Josie Cockrell, Pam 
Thompson, and Mayor Jones.  A quorum was present. 
 
Consent Agenda 
Trustee Thompson asked for clarification on two items in the Treasurer’s Report.   
 
Mayor Jones moved, seconded by Trustee Snell-Johnson, to approve the following item on the 
Consent Agenda: 
 

a. Approval of Minutes – August 5, 2021 
b. Financial Reports – July 2021 

 
The motion passed by unanimous roll call vote. 
 
For Possible Action 
Ordinance 2021-06 Repealing and Reenacting Article 2 of Chapter 7 of the Foxfield Municipal 
Code Regarding Animal Control 
Arapahoe County provides animal control services to the Town of Foxfield.  Arapahoe County recently 
passed a resolution changing some of their animal control regulations, so this ordinance adopts those 
changes.  Mayor Jones noted that Town residents need to be notified that there is no longer a dog 
licensing requirement, but all dogs must get their rabies vaccines. 
 
Mayor Jones moved to approve Ordinance 2021-06 Repealing and Reenacting Article 2 of Chapter 7 
of the Foxfield Municipal Code Regarding Animal Control.  Following a second by Trustee Cockrell, 
the motion passed by unanimous roll call vote. 
 
For Discussion 
Long Range Financial Forecast 
The Board approved Town Administrator Proctor moving forward with researching grants and costs 
for a Municipal Code review and update. 
 
Revision to the Rules of Procedure 
The Board approved a revision to the Rules of Procedure to allow public comments both before and 
after Board member comments on the “for discussion” items on the agenda. 
 
Social Media 
It was decided that the Town will look into a program that would allow the Town Clerk to easily send 
texts to residents for time-sensitive notifications. 
 
 



 
 
Open Space Clean-Up 
It was decided the Town will hire a professional service to clean out the debris and excess dead 
branches in the wooded area in the Open Space, with preservation of the wildlife habitat a priority. 
 
The Board will pursue the project to get a mural painted in the pedestrian tunnel in the Open Space. 
 
Reports 
Members of the Town Board 
Trustee Thompson asked about the Community Garage Sale this year.  It was decided to schedule it 
for September 17-18.  She asked if ARPA funds could be used to upgrade broadband service in 
Foxfield.  She also noted that the gates are illuminated at night. 
 
Trustee Farreau reported that she attended a virtual meeting with Tri-County Health where the 
discussion centered around how to move forward without Douglas County as a participant.  No 
decisions were made. 
 
Trustee Cockrell reported DRCOG is working on possibilities to curtail speeding and slow drivers 
down in the metro area. 
 
Town Staff 
Town Administrator Proctor reported the repairs on the gate loop and sensor had been completed.  
We will be scheduling testing for school buses, law enforcement and fire department vehicles as soon 
as possible. 
 
Town Clerk Gallivan confirmed the gates are covered property under the CIRSA insurance policy. 
 
Future Agenda Items 

• Social Media / Texting 

• Amendment to Rules of Procedure 

• Fee Schedule for Animal Control services 

• Open Space Mural 
 
Adjournment 
Mayor Jones adjourned the meeting at 7:54 p.m. 
 
 
 
 
      _________________________________________ 
                                                                       Randi Gallivan, Town Clerk 
 
                   
                             
      _________________________________________  
      Lisa Jones, Mayor  
 



  ITEM# 5a 

 

MEMORANDUM 

 

TO:  Mayor Jones and Members of the Board 
 
FROM:  Karen Proctor, Town Administrator 
 
DATE:  September 2, 2021  
 
RE: Resolution 2021-07 Revising the Rules of Procedure for the Town of Foxfield, 

Colorado 
 

DISCUSSION: 

On September 17, 2020, the Board approved Resolution 2020-05 adopting Rules of Procedure 

for the Town of Foxfield.  At the last meeting, the Board agreed to revise the Rules of Procedure 

to change the meeting agendas by adding an additional public comment after Board discussion 

of any item on the agenda “for discussion”.  Attached is a redlined version of the Rules of 

Procedure indicating this change in the section titled “Meetings”, #3(b).   

 
SUGGESTED MOTION; 

“I move to approve Resolution 2021-07 Revising the Rules of Procedure for the Town of 

Foxfield, Colorado.” 

     

ATTACHMENT: 

Exhibit A: Resolution 2021-07 Revising the Rules of Procedures for the Town of Foxfield, 

Colorado 

Exhibit B: Relined Rules of Procedure 

Exhibit C: Final Rules of Procedure 



Trustee’s Resolution  Resolution No 07, Series 2021 

 

 

 

 

A RESOLUTION REVISING THE RULES OF PROCEDURE  

FOR THE TOWN OF FOXFIELD, COLORADO 
 

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE TOWN OF 

FOXFIELD, COLORADO, THAT: 
 

Section 1.  The Rules of Procedure, as attached hereto, are hereby approved by the 

Board of Trustees of the Town of Foxfield, Colorado. 
 

DATED, at the Town of Foxfield, Colorado, this ______ day of  _September__ 2021. 

 

 
 
 

 __________________________________                                                                    

Lisa Jones, Mayor  

 

 

ATTEST:        

 

 
      

Randi Gallivan, Town Clerk  
 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 

clerk
Typewritten Text
Exhibit A



1 
 

Town of Foxfield 

BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
RULES OF PROCEDURE 

September 0217, 20210 

 

Authority 

These Rules of Procedure are adopted by the Town of Foxfield Board of Trustees pursuant to 

Section 2-2-10 of the Town of Foxfield Municipal Code. Deviations from these Rules that do not 

violate any law may be permitted at the discretion of the Mayor.  In the event of a conflict 

between these Rules of Procedure and any provision of the Foxfield Municipal Code, as the 

same may be amended from time to time, the provisions of the Foxfield Municipal Code shall 

control. 

Roles and Responsibilities 

Refer to the Town of Foxfield Municipal Code Chapter 2, Article 2. 

Meetings 

1) The Board of Trustees consists of the Mayor and six Board members. Four members of 

the Board constitute a quorum.  

 

2) An organizational meeting shall be held at the first Board meeting following certification 

of election results after each regular Town election. At this meeting elected Board 

members and the Mayor-elect shall assume the duties of office; the newly elected 

Mayor and Board members shall take their oath of office; and the Mayor Pro Tem shall 

be selected by the Board. 

 

3) Regular Meetings  

a. Regular meetings of the Board shall be scheduled for the first and third Thursday of 

each month with the following exceptions:  

• In July only one meeting shall be held on the third Thursday of the month. 

• In December only one meeting shall be held on the second Thursday of the 

month.  

• The first Thursday of each month may be a study session. 

Regular meetings may be rescheduled or cancelled at the discretion of the Mayor, 

provided that the Board shall meet at least once each month. All meetings will be held at 

the South Metro Fire Protection District Station #42, 7320 South Parker Road, or at such 

other venue as Board shall select and provide notice thereof in accordance with 

applicable law. All meetings will begin at 6:30 p.m. unless otherwise noted on the agenda. 

clerk
Typewritten Text

clerk
Typewritten Text

clerk
Typewritten Text
Exhibit B



2 
 

b. The order of business at regular meetings shall be as follows unless adjusted by the 

Mayor. 

1.  Call to Order 
2. Pledge of Allegiance 
3. Roll Call of Board Members 
4. Audience Participation for items not on the Agenda 
5. Consent Agenda 
6. For Discussion 

o Presentation 
o PublicAudience comments 
o Board discussion 
o Public comments 

7. For Possible Action 
o Presentation 
o PublicAudience comments 
o Board discussion 

 
o 8. Reports 

 a. Mayor 
 b. Members of Town Board 
 c. Town Administrator and Staff 
 d. Town Attorney 
9. Future Agenda Items 
10. Adjournment 

c. The Mayor may adjust the order of business and allow scheduled presentations at a 

time and in a manner most convenient for the public, staff, and Board. 

 

4) Special meetings of the Board shall be called by the Town Clerk on the oral request of 

the Mayor, or of any two members of the Board, on at least 24 hours’ advance written 

or telephonic notice to each member of the Board. 

 

5) The purpose of a study session shall be to hear, study, and discuss matters in a forum 

that allows for more attention to the matter than a regular meeting. Study sessions shall 

be open to the public, but audience participation will not necessarily be taken. No 

business shall be transacted, and no formal action shall be taken at a study session. 

However, the Board may by consensus provide Town staff with direction concerning 

agenda-related items. When possible, study sessions shall be held on the first Thursday 

of the month. 

 

6) Executive Sessions 



3 
 

a. Executive sessions may only be held at a regular or special meeting and shall comply 

with the provisions of C.R.S. § 24-6-402. 

b. A motion to move into executive session from a regular or special meeting shall set 

forth the matter to be discussed in as much detail as possible without compromising 

the purpose for which the executive session is authorized. The motion shall include 

specific citation to the provision of C.R.S. § 24-6-402 authorizing the executive 

session. The motion shall be approved by a 2/3 majority of the Board members 

present on roll call. 

c. The Board shall make no final policy decision, nor shall it adopt or approve any 

resolution, rule, ordinance, regulation, or formal action at any session closed to the 

general public.  

d. Discussions that occur during executive session, except attorney-client privileged 

communications as identified in C.R.S. § 24-6-402(d.5)(II)(A), shall be recorded by 

making an audio recording that shall be retained for  90days after the date of the 

executive session.  

e. All persons present shall preserve the confidentiality of the matters discussed in 

executive session.  

 

7) Agendas and Council Packet 

a. The agenda shall be maintained by the Town Clerk and may be modified by the 

Town Administrator or Mayor. Any Board member may submit to the Town Clerk 

items for the agenda, which shall be included on the agenda for the next scheduled 

meeting if provided to the Town Clerk at least 24 hours prior to distribution of the 

Council packets. Agendas shall be posted at the location designated by the Board for 

notices of meetings at least 24 hours prior to any regular or special meeting. The 

agenda shall also be made available to the public through the Town website.  

b. The Board meeting packet shall generally be provided to Board members no later 

than the Friday preceding any regularly scheduled meeting. Supporting information 

not available the Friday before the meeting may be provided to the Board at the 

meeting. The Board packet shall be made available to the public through the Town 

website or by request made to the Town Clerk.  

 

8) The Mayor, Mayor Pro Tem, or other designated Board member in their absence, shall 

serve as the presiding officer in the conduct of meetings. In the event of absence or 

disability of both the Mayor and the Mayor Pro Tem, the Board shall designate another 

of its members to serve as Acting Mayor during such absence or disability. Any Mayor 

Pro Tem or Acting Mayor, while serving as such, shall retain all powers granted to Board 

members by the Municipal Code. References to the Mayor’s powers and duties during a 

Board meeting in these Rules shall apply to the presiding officer at the meeting. 

 

9) General Discussion 



4 
 

a. Each member of the Board shall be afforded an opportunity to speak on the matter 

under discussion before moving on to another topic of discussion. The Mayor may 

set a time limit on any such discussion by members of the Board. 

b. Board members shall not be permitted to explain their vote during a roll call. Such 

explanation is permitted during the discussion of the question or motion. 

 

10)  Audience Participation 

a. Any person may speak to the Board on any matter during the Audience Participation 

period at the beginning of each regular and special meeting. The Town Clerk shall 

provide an audience participation sign-up form before each regular meeting. 

Immediately prior to the audience participation portion of the meeting, the Town 

Clerk shall hand the sign-up form to the Mayor. The Mayor shall call those signed up 

to speak before the Board in the order they have signed up.  

b. Audience participation shall be limited to 4 minutes per speaker. 

c. The Mayor may restrict cumulative or redundant presentations. 

d. Those attending Board meetings shall refrain from disruptive, vulgar, or abusive 

language, applause, heckling or other actions that interfere with the orderly function 

of the Board. The Mayor may take any reasonable steps to maintain the order and 

dignity of the Board meetings. 

 

11) Public Hearings 

a. Public hearings will be held as required by the Municipal Code. The Mayor will open 

each hearing and allow any person in attendance to address the issue subject to the 

rules contained in Section 11 concerning audience participation. The purpose of any 

Public Hearing shall be to: (1) allow applicants an opportunity to present evidence in 

support of their application; (2) ensure compliance with due process principles; and 

(3) provide everyone an opportunity to present their views and recommendations 

on the issue that is the subject of the hearing.  

b. The Mayor and Board members shall not debate or challenge the position of any 

speaker but may question a speaker to fully understand their position.  The Mayor 

and Board shall reserve their comments on public testimony until the issue is before 

the Board for discussion. 

c. Written communications submitted directly to Town staff or Trustees must be 

submitted at least 24 hours in advance of the public hearing to ensure inclusion in 

the record. Written comments or postings related to a public hearing that are 

submitted on the Town’s social media, such as Nextdoor, shall not be considered 

part of the record, unless specifically included in the record via staff report or by 

acknowledgement of the Board. All written materials submitted to the Town Clerk or 

the Board at the public hearing shall be considered part of the record. 

 

12) Method of Voting 



5 
 

a. On motions that do not require a roll call of votes, the Mayor shall ask that all those 

in favor of the motion signify by saying yes. Those members in favor shall give said 

sign. The Mayor shall then ask that all those opposed signify by saying no. Those 

members opposed shall give said sign. The Mayor shall signify if the motion passes 

or fails. The Town Clerk shall record the results of the motion in the minutes of the 

meeting. 

b. On motions that require a roll call of votes, the Mayor shall ask the Town Clerk for a 

roll call. The Town Clerk shall perform the roll call and record each member’s vote in 

the minutes. The Mayor shall signify if the motion passes or fails. 

 

13) Conflict of Interest 

If a member of the Board has a personal, financial or other conflict of interest, or 

appearance thereof that would affect public confidence in any matter to be voted upon 

or otherwise officially considered, deemed by the affected Board member to require 

recusal, then a brief statement of such disclosure shall be presented prior to any 

consideration of the matter by the Board, and then not participate in any discussion or 

vote of the matter. 

 

14) Minutes 

Record of proceedings shall be taken by the Town Clerk in the form of written minutes 

as well as audio recording. Written minutes will be prepared by the Town Clerk and be 

presented for the Board’s approval at the next regular or special meeting. Following 

approval, the written minutes will be made available to the public on the Town website. 

Ordinances  

1) Any legislative action by the Board shall be by adoption of an ordinance. All other 

matters may be decided by adoption of a motion or resolution as the Board deems 

appropriate. 

 

2) The Mayor, any Board member, or the Town Administrator may request that a proposed 

ordinance be placed on the agenda. A proposed ordinance may be introduced by any 

member of the Board. Where feasible, the person proposing the ordinance may present 

the proposed text together with a written or oral explanation for the purpose and 

content of the proposed ordinance at a regularly scheduled meeting for discussion 

before first consideration. 

 

3) Any ordinance that has been first discussed shall then be placed on the agenda of the 

next regular or special Board meeting for final consideration The proposed ordinance 

must be completed in written form and a copy provided to each Board member. If a 

public hearing is required, then said ordinance shall be placed on the agenda of the next 

regular or special meeting after the required publication is accomplished. 



6 
 

 

4) If an Emergency ordinance is deemed necessary, it shall go into effect immediately 

without the 30-day waiting period. 

 

Conflicts of Interest and Ethics 

1) Disclosure of personal interest in nonvoting matters  

All Board members shall disclose any personal interest they have relative to any matter 

brought before the Board that would lead a reasonable person to infer that it affects 

their exercise of discretion. In addition, the Board member may, to the extent allowed 

by law, ordinance or policy, recuse himself/herself from involvement in the matter.  

 
2) Acceptance of gratuities, etc.  

A Board member may not accept, directly or indirectly, any money, gift, gratuity or 

other consideration or favor of any kind from anyone other than the Town:  

a. For the performance of an act, or refraining from performance of an act, that he/she 

would be expected to perform, or refrain from performing, in the regular course of 

his duties; or  

b. That might reasonably be interpreted as an attempt to influence his/her action, or 

reward him/her for past action, in executing Town business.  

 

3) Use of information  

a. A Board member may not disclose, except as authorized by law, any information 

obtained in his/her official capacity that is made confidential by the Town code, 

state or federal law.  

b. A Board member may not use or disclose information obtained in his/her official 

capacity with the intent to result in financial gain for himself/herself or any other 

person or entity.  

4) Use of Town time, facilities, etc.  

a. A Board member may not use or authorize the use of Town time, facilities, 

equipment or supplies for private gain or advantage to himself/herself.  

b. A Board member may not use or authorize the use of Town time, facilities, 

equipment or supplies for private gain or advantage to any private person or entity, 

except as authorized by a legitimate contract or lease that is determined by the 

governing body to be in the best interests of the Town.  

 

5) Use of position or authority  

a. A Board member may not make or attempt to make private purchases, for cash or 

otherwise, in the name of the Town.  



7 
 

b. A Board member may not use or attempt to use his/her position to secure any 

privilege or exemption for himself/herself or others that is not authorized by general 

law, ordinance, or Town policy. 

 

 

 

6) Ethics 

Any reports of a possible ethics violations may be reviewed by an outside agency or 

investigator at the discretion of a majority of the Board of Trustees. 

 

Attendance and Absences 

1) The Board must have a quorum to do business. Therefore, governance of the Town 

requires that all members of the Board attend meetings to fulfill their obligation to the 

citizens of Foxfield by fully participating in the process of government. Additionally, each 

member of the Board has an obligation to his or her fellow members to be informed and 

attend Board meetings. 

 

2)  If it is necessary for a Trustee to be absent from a regular meeting of the Board, the 

Trustee shall notify the Mayor and Town Clerk prior to the meeting.  

 

3) If it is necessary for the Mayor to be absent from a regular meeting of the Board, the 

Mayor shall notify the Town Clerk prior to the meeting.  

Finances 

1) Each individual elected to the offices of Mayor and the Board of Trustees shall receive 

compensation at a rate of one hundred ($100.00) per month, less taxes.  

 

2) The Town shall pay or reimburse the Mayor and Board members for necessary bona fide 

expenses incurred in service on behalf of the Town if authorized, itemized and 

maintained as a matter of public record. The Town will pay or reimburse the Mayor and 

Board members for travel expenses and mileage allowance according to the IRS mileage 

reimbursement rate.  

 

3) The Town will not pay or reimburse the Mayor or Board members for any costs 

associated with a member’s spouse attending any related function. 

Electronic Mail and Social Media 



8 
 

1) Electronic communications such as email shared among the Board may constitute a 

meeting for which open meetings and open records requirements may apply. The Town 

of Foxfield Use and Retention Policies and Procedures for Electronic Mail included as 

Appendix A to these Rules shall provide a guide to elected officials. 

 

2) No business of the Board shall be discussed by individual Board members on social 

media. 

 

Amendment of Rules 

1) Any additions hereto or modifications or amendments hereof shall be submitted in 

writing at a regular meeting and shall be acted upon no sooner than at the next meeting 

of the Board as an agenda item. This requirement may be waived only upon the 

unanimous affirmative-recorded vote of all members of the Board. 

 Robert’s Rules of Order 

1) To the extent helpful, relevant, and not inconsistent with these Rules, Robert’s Rules of 

Order Newly Revised shall apply. 

  



9 
 

APPENDIX A 

Town of Foxfield 

Use and Retention Policies and Procedures for Electronic Mail 

September 27, 2010 

 

The use of e-mail communications has implications under both the Colorado Open Meetings Law, 

Section 24-6-401, et seq., and the Colorado Open Records Act (CORA), Section 24-72-201, et seq.  The 

policies and procedures need to ensure that the practices of elected officials comply with the statutory 

requirements of both of these laws. 

Electronic Mail (E-mail) – An electronic message that is transmitted between two or more computers or 

electronic terminals, whether or not the message is converted to hard copy format after receipt and 

whether or not the message is viewed upon transmission or stored for later retrieval.  Mail received or 

sent, in any format, contains a variety of information, or content, and each e-mail should be managed in 

a way that appropriate for its content.  Treat each e-mail as if it were received in a paper format through 

the mail.  The Board’s e-mail likely will fall into two general categories:  

• Enduring Long-Term Value – Documentation or correspondence with enduring and long term 
administrative, policy, legal, fiscal, historical, or research value; records that relate to policy issues and 
actions or activities In which an important precedent is set; records of historic events relating to the 
municipality or the community; and other similar records and documentation.  These documents have a 
permanent retention period. 
 

• Routine Value – Operating documentation that is routine and contains no significant administrative, 
legal, fiscal, historical, informational or statistical value.  Includes routine letters or memoranda sent and 
received, reading or chronological files that are kept solely for convenience and contain duplicates of 
memos or letters that are also filed elsewhere, routine requests for information, transmittal document, 
etc.  These documents have a retention period of one year plus the current year. 
 

• Transitory Value – General documentation of extremely short-term value, including advertisements, 
drafts and worksheets, desk notes, copies of materials circulated for informational “read only” purposes, 
other records with preliminary or short-term informational value. These documents can be destroyed 
once they are read. 
 

Use of Email Communications by Public Officials  

• E-mail communications between three or more elected officials concerning public business and/or 

pending legislation are declared to be a public meeting and are prohibited. 



1 
 

Town of Foxfield 

BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
RULES OF PROCEDURE 

September 02, 2021 

 

Authority 

These Rules of Procedure are adopted by the Town of Foxfield Board of Trustees pursuant to 

Section 2-2-10 of the Town of Foxfield Municipal Code. Deviations from these Rules that do not 

violate any law may be permitted at the discretion of the Mayor.  In the event of a conflict 

between these Rules of Procedure and any provision of the Foxfield Municipal Code, as the 

same may be amended from time to time, the provisions of the Foxfield Municipal Code shall 

control. 

Roles and Responsibilities 

Refer to the Town of Foxfield Municipal Code Chapter 2, Article 2. 

Meetings 

1) The Board of Trustees consists of the Mayor and six Board members. Four members of 

the Board constitute a quorum.  

 

2) An organizational meeting shall be held at the first Board meeting following certification 

of election results after each regular Town election. At this meeting elected Board 

members and the Mayor-elect shall assume the duties of office; the newly elected 

Mayor and Board members shall take their oath of office; and the Mayor Pro Tem shall 

be selected by the Board. 

 

3) Regular Meetings  

a. Regular meetings of the Board shall be scheduled for the first and third Thursday of 

each month with the following exceptions:  

• In July only one meeting shall be held on the third Thursday of the month. 

• In December only one meeting shall be held on the second Thursday of the 

month.  

• The first Thursday of each month may be a study session. 

Regular meetings may be rescheduled or cancelled at the discretion of the Mayor, 

provided that the Board shall meet at least once each month. All meetings will be held at 

the South Metro Fire Protection District Station #42, 7320 South Parker Road, or at such 

other venue as Board shall select and provide notice thereof in accordance with 

applicable law. All meetings will begin at 6:30 p.m. unless otherwise noted on the agenda. 

clerk
Typewritten Text

clerk
Typewritten Text
Exhibit C



2 
 

b. The order of business at regular meetings shall be as follows unless adjusted by the 

Mayor. 

1.  Call to Order 
2. Pledge of Allegiance 
3. Roll Call of Board Members 
4. Audience Participation for items not on the Agenda 
5. Consent Agenda 
6. For Discussion 

o Presentation 
o Public comment 
o Board discussion 
o Public comments 

7. For Possible Action 
o Presentation 
o Public comment 
o Board discussion 

o 8. Reports 
 a. Mayor 
 b. Members of Town Board 
 c. Town Administrator and Staff 
 d. Town Attorney 
9. Future Agenda Items 
10. Adjournment 

c. The Mayor may adjust the order of business and allow scheduled presentations at a 

time and in a manner most convenient for the public, staff, and Board. 

 

4) Special meetings of the Board shall be called by the Town Clerk on the oral request of 

the Mayor, or of any two members of the Board, on at least 24 hours’ advance written 

or telephonic notice to each member of the Board. 

 

5) The purpose of a study session shall be to hear, study, and discuss matters in a forum 

that allows for more attention to the matter than a regular meeting. Study sessions shall 

be open to the public, but audience participation will not necessarily be taken. No 

business shall be transacted, and no formal action shall be taken at a study session. 

However, the Board may by consensus provide Town staff with direction concerning 

agenda-related items. When possible, study sessions shall be held on the first Thursday 

of the month. 

 

6) Executive Sessions 

a. Executive sessions may only be held at a regular or special meeting and shall comply 

with the provisions of C.R.S. § 24-6-402. 



3 
 

b. A motion to move into executive session from a regular or special meeting shall set 

forth the matter to be discussed in as much detail as possible without compromising 

the purpose for which the executive session is authorized. The motion shall include 

specific citation to the provision of C.R.S. § 24-6-402 authorizing the executive 

session. The motion shall be approved by a 2/3 majority of the Board members 

present on roll call. 

c. The Board shall make no final policy decision, nor shall it adopt or approve any 

resolution, rule, ordinance, regulation, or formal action at any session closed to the 

general public.  

d. Discussions that occur during executive session, except attorney-client privileged 

communications as identified in C.R.S. § 24-6-402(d.5)(II)(A), shall be recorded by 

making an audio recording that shall be retained for  90days after the date of the 

executive session.  

e. All persons present shall preserve the confidentiality of the matters discussed in 

executive session.  

 

7) Agendas and Council Packet 

a. The agenda shall be maintained by the Town Clerk and may be modified by the 

Town Administrator or Mayor. Any Board member may submit to the Town Clerk 

items for the agenda, which shall be included on the agenda for the next scheduled 

meeting if provided to the Town Clerk at least 24 hours prior to distribution of the 

Council packets. Agendas shall be posted at the location designated by the Board for 

notices of meetings at least 24 hours prior to any regular or special meeting. The 

agenda shall also be made available to the public through the Town website.  

b. The Board meeting packet shall generally be provided to Board members no later 

than the Friday preceding any regularly scheduled meeting. Supporting information 

not available the Friday before the meeting may be provided to the Board at the 

meeting. The Board packet shall be made available to the public through the Town 

website or by request made to the Town Clerk.  

 

8) The Mayor, Mayor Pro Tem, or other designated Board member in their absence, shall 

serve as the presiding officer in the conduct of meetings. In the event of absence or 

disability of both the Mayor and the Mayor Pro Tem, the Board shall designate another 

of its members to serve as Acting Mayor during such absence or disability. Any Mayor 

Pro Tem or Acting Mayor, while serving as such, shall retain all powers granted to Board 

members by the Municipal Code. References to the Mayor’s powers and duties during a 

Board meeting in these Rules shall apply to the presiding officer at the meeting. 

 

9) General Discussion 



4 
 

a. Each member of the Board shall be afforded an opportunity to speak on the matter 

under discussion before moving on to another topic of discussion. The Mayor may 

set a time limit on any such discussion by members of the Board. 

b. Board members shall not be permitted to explain their vote during a roll call. Such 

explanation is permitted during the discussion of the question or motion. 

 

10)  Audience Participation 

a. Any person may speak to the Board on any matter during the Audience Participation 

period at the beginning of each regular and special meeting. The Town Clerk shall 

provide an audience participation sign-up form before each regular meeting. 

Immediately prior to the audience participation portion of the meeting, the Town 

Clerk shall hand the sign-up form to the Mayor. The Mayor shall call those signed up 

to speak before the Board in the order they have signed up.  

b. Audience participation shall be limited to 4 minutes per speaker. 

c. The Mayor may restrict cumulative or redundant presentations. 

d. Those attending Board meetings shall refrain from disruptive, vulgar, or abusive 

language, applause, heckling or other actions that interfere with the orderly function 

of the Board. The Mayor may take any reasonable steps to maintain the order and 

dignity of the Board meetings. 

 

11) Public Hearings 

a. Public hearings will be held as required by the Municipal Code. The Mayor will open 

each hearing and allow any person in attendance to address the issue subject to the 

rules contained in Section 11 concerning audience participation. The purpose of any 

Public Hearing shall be to: (1) allow applicants an opportunity to present evidence in 

support of their application; (2) ensure compliance with due process principles; and 

(3) provide everyone an opportunity to present their views and recommendations 

on the issue that is the subject of the hearing.  

b. The Mayor and Board members shall not debate or challenge the position of any 

speaker but may question a speaker to fully understand their position.  The Mayor 

and Board shall reserve their comments on public testimony until the issue is before 

the Board for discussion. 

c. Written communications submitted directly to Town staff or Trustees must be 

submitted at least 24 hours in advance of the public hearing to ensure inclusion in 

the record. Written comments or postings related to a public hearing that are 

submitted on the Town’s social media, such as Nextdoor, shall not be considered 

part of the record, unless specifically included in the record via staff report or by 

acknowledgement of the Board. All written materials submitted to the Town Clerk or 

the Board at the public hearing shall be considered part of the record. 

 

12) Method of Voting 



5 
 

a. On motions that do not require a roll call of votes, the Mayor shall ask that all those 

in favor of the motion signify by saying yes. Those members in favor shall give said 

sign. The Mayor shall then ask that all those opposed signify by saying no. Those 

members opposed shall give said sign. The Mayor shall signify if the motion passes 

or fails. The Town Clerk shall record the results of the motion in the minutes of the 

meeting. 

b. On motions that require a roll call of votes, the Mayor shall ask the Town Clerk for a 

roll call. The Town Clerk shall perform the roll call and record each member’s vote in 

the minutes. The Mayor shall signify if the motion passes or fails. 

 

13) Conflict of Interest 

If a member of the Board has a personal, financial or other conflict of interest, or 

appearance thereof that would affect public confidence in any matter to be voted upon 

or otherwise officially considered, deemed by the affected Board member to require 

recusal, then a brief statement of such disclosure shall be presented prior to any 

consideration of the matter by the Board, and then not participate in any discussion or 

vote of the matter. 

 

14) Minutes 

Record of proceedings shall be taken by the Town Clerk in the form of written minutes 

as well as audio recording. Written minutes will be prepared by the Town Clerk and be 

presented for the Board’s approval at the next regular or special meeting. Following 

approval, the written minutes will be made available to the public on the Town website. 

Ordinances  

1) Any legislative action by the Board shall be by adoption of an ordinance. All other 

matters may be decided by adoption of a motion or resolution as the Board deems 

appropriate. 

 

2) The Mayor, any Board member, or the Town Administrator may request that a proposed 

ordinance be placed on the agenda. A proposed ordinance may be introduced by any 

member of the Board. Where feasible, the person proposing the ordinance may present 

the proposed text together with a written or oral explanation for the purpose and 

content of the proposed ordinance at a regularly scheduled meeting for discussion 

before first consideration. 

 

3) Any ordinance that has been first discussed shall then be placed on the agenda of the 

next regular or special Board meeting for final consideration The proposed ordinance 

must be completed in written form and a copy provided to each Board member. If a 

public hearing is required, then said ordinance shall be placed on the agenda of the next 

regular or special meeting after the required publication is accomplished. 



6 
 

 

4) If an Emergency ordinance is deemed necessary, it shall go into effect immediately 

without the 30-day waiting period. 

 

Conflicts of Interest and Ethics 

1) Disclosure of personal interest in nonvoting matters  

All Board members shall disclose any personal interest they have relative to any matter 

brought before the Board that would lead a reasonable person to infer that it affects 

their exercise of discretion. In addition, the Board member may, to the extent allowed 

by law, ordinance or policy, recuse himself/herself from involvement in the matter.  

 
2) Acceptance of gratuities, etc.  

A Board member may not accept, directly or indirectly, any money, gift, gratuity or 

other consideration or favor of any kind from anyone other than the Town:  

a. For the performance of an act, or refraining from performance of an act, that he/she 

would be expected to perform, or refrain from performing, in the regular course of 

his duties; or  

b. That might reasonably be interpreted as an attempt to influence his/her action, or 

reward him/her for past action, in executing Town business.  

 

3) Use of information  

a. A Board member may not disclose, except as authorized by law, any information 

obtained in his/her official capacity that is made confidential by the Town code, 

state or federal law.  

b. A Board member may not use or disclose information obtained in his/her official 

capacity with the intent to result in financial gain for himself/herself or any other 

person or entity.  

4) Use of Town time, facilities, etc.  

a. A Board member may not use or authorize the use of Town time, facilities, 

equipment or supplies for private gain or advantage to himself/herself.  

b. A Board member may not use or authorize the use of Town time, facilities, 

equipment or supplies for private gain or advantage to any private person or entity, 

except as authorized by a legitimate contract or lease that is determined by the 

governing body to be in the best interests of the Town.  

 

5) Use of position or authority  

a. A Board member may not make or attempt to make private purchases, for cash or 

otherwise, in the name of the Town.  



7 
 

b. A Board member may not use or attempt to use his/her position to secure any 

privilege or exemption for himself/herself or others that is not authorized by general 

law, ordinance, or Town policy. 

 

6) Ethics 

Any reports of a possible ethics violations may be reviewed by an outside agency or 

investigator at the discretion of a majority of the Board of Trustees. 

 

Attendance and Absences 

1) The Board must have a quorum to do business. Therefore, governance of the Town 

requires that all members of the Board attend meetings to fulfill their obligation to the 

citizens of Foxfield by fully participating in the process of government. Additionally, each 

member of the Board has an obligation to his or her fellow members to be informed and 

attend Board meetings. 

 

2)  If it is necessary for a Trustee to be absent from a regular meeting of the Board, the 

Trustee shall notify the Mayor and Town Clerk prior to the meeting.  

 

3) If it is necessary for the Mayor to be absent from a regular meeting of the Board, the 

Mayor shall notify the Town Clerk prior to the meeting.  

Finances 

1) Each individual elected to the offices of Mayor and the Board of Trustees shall receive 

compensation at a rate of one hundred ($100.00) per month, less taxes.  

 

2) The Town shall pay or reimburse the Mayor and Board members for necessary bona fide 

expenses incurred in service on behalf of the Town if authorized, itemized and 

maintained as a matter of public record. The Town will pay or reimburse the Mayor and 

Board members for travel expenses and mileage allowance according to the IRS mileage 

reimbursement rate.  

 

3) The Town will not pay or reimburse the Mayor or Board members for any costs 

associated with a member’s spouse attending any related function. 

Electronic Mail and Social Media 

1) Electronic communications such as email shared among the Board may constitute a 

meeting for which open meetings and open records requirements may apply. The Town 

of Foxfield Use and Retention Policies and Procedures for Electronic Mail included as 

Appendix A to these Rules shall provide a guide to elected officials. 

 



8 
 

2) No business of the Board shall be discussed by individual Board members on social 

media. 

 

Amendment of Rules 

1) Any additions hereto or modifications or amendments hereof shall be submitted in 

writing at a regular meeting and shall be acted upon no sooner than at the next meeting 

of the Board as an agenda item. This requirement may be waived only upon the 

unanimous affirmative-recorded vote of all members of the Board. 

 Robert’s Rules of Order 

1) To the extent helpful, relevant, and not inconsistent with these Rules, Robert’s Rules of 

Order Newly Revised shall apply. 

  



9 
 

APPENDIX A 

Town of Foxfield 

Use and Retention Policies and Procedures for Electronic Mail 

September 27, 2010 

 

The use of e-mail communications has implications under both the Colorado Open Meetings Law, 

Section 24-6-401, et seq., and the Colorado Open Records Act (CORA), Section 24-72-201, et seq.  The 

policies and procedures need to ensure that the practices of elected officials comply with the statutory 

requirements of both of these laws. 

Electronic Mail (E-mail) – An electronic message that is transmitted between two or more computers or 

electronic terminals, whether or not the message is converted to hard copy format after receipt and 

whether or not the message is viewed upon transmission or stored for later retrieval.  Mail received or 

sent, in any format, contains a variety of information, or content, and each e-mail should be managed in 

a way that appropriate for its content.  Treat each e-mail as if it were received in a paper format through 

the mail.  The Board’s e-mail likely will fall into two general categories:  

• Enduring Long-Term Value – Documentation or correspondence with enduring and long term 
administrative, policy, legal, fiscal, historical, or research value; records that relate to policy issues and 
actions or activities In which an important precedent is set; records of historic events relating to the 
municipality or the community; and other similar records and documentation.  These documents have a 
permanent retention period. 
 

• Routine Value – Operating documentation that is routine and contains no significant administrative, 
legal, fiscal, historical, informational or statistical value.  Includes routine letters or memoranda sent and 
received, reading or chronological files that are kept solely for convenience and contain duplicates of 
memos or letters that are also filed elsewhere, routine requests for information, transmittal document, 
etc.  These documents have a retention period of one year plus the current year. 
 

• Transitory Value – General documentation of extremely short-term value, including advertisements, 
drafts and worksheets, desk notes, copies of materials circulated for informational “read only” purposes, 
other records with preliminary or short-term informational value. These documents can be destroyed 
once they are read. 
 

Use of Email Communications by Public Officials  

• E-mail communications between three or more elected officials concerning public business and/or 

pending legislation are declared to be a public meeting and are prohibited. 



    Item # 6a 

 

MEMORANDUM 

 

TO:    Mayor Jones and Members of the Board 
 
FROM:   Karen Proctor, Town Administrator 
 
DATE:    September 2, 2021   
 
RE:  Draft Resolution Regarding Animal Control Fees  

 
DISCUSSION: 
Ordinance 2021‐06 was approved by the Board on August 19, 2021.  The Ordinance states that 
the animal control fees will be set by a separate Resolution.  The fees in this Ordinance were set 
and adopted by Arapahoe County.  At the suggestion of Town Attorney Hoffmann, $65 was 
added as to the impoundment changes to be paid to the Town of Foxfield because this is a fee 
that the Town must pay for the Officer and Clerk Gallivan invoices to the resident. 
 
If the Board approves this draft resolution, staff will bring it back for adoption at the next Board 
meeting. 
 
ATTACHMENT: 
Exhibit A: Draft Resolution Regarding Animal Control Fees 
 



 

 

Trustee’s Resolution 

 

 

 

          Resolution No. 08, Series 2021 

 

 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES FOR THE TOWN OF FOXFIELD, 

COLORADO ADOPTING A FEE SCHEDULE FOR ANIMAL CONTROL SERVICES 

 

WHEREAS, the Board of Trustees has adopted Ordinance 2021-06 Regarding Animal 

Control, which may be amended from time to time, to provide reasonable regulations and 

restrictions for the control, licensing and impoundment of dogs and other pet animals as the Board 

deems necessary; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Animal Control Services Ordinance provides for the imposition of fees to 

cover the costs of certain services provided by the County under or in accordance with the Animal 

Control Ordinance; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Animal Control Services Ordinance contemplates that the Board 

establishes and amends such fees from time to time and may do so by separate Resolution; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Arapahoe County Animal Services Manager and the Town of Foxfield 

have recommended and proposed that the Board amend the existing fee schedule and approve fees 

for services for returning an animal to the owner, disposal of deceased animals, and costs for 

impounding of animals; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Board has considered such proposed fee schedule and finds such fees to 

be reasonable and reasonably related to the costs of such services. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, the Board of Trustees for The Town of Foxfield hereby resolves as 

follows: 

 

1. That the following fees are established for the administration of the Animal Services 

Resolution:  

 

a. Return to Owner Fee: $50.00 (this fee is paid to the Animal Services Officer, not the 

contracted facility, upon the return of the animal to an owner or keeper.  Any fees 

charged by the contracted facility are separate and apart from the Return to Owner Fee).    

 

b. Dead Pet Animal/Wildlife Pickup for Disposal Fee: $50.00 (this fee is paid to the 

Animal Services Officer at the time of service).  

 

c. Cost of Impound Fee: $65.00 (this fee is paid to the Town of Foxfield upon receipt of 

invoice) in addition to the amount set by the impound facility Arapahoe County 

contracts to house such impounded animals.  

 

 

 

clerk
Typewritten Text

clerk
Typewritten Text

clerk
Typewritten Text
Exhibit A

clerk
Typewritten Text

clerk
Typewritten Text
  

clerk
Typewritten Text



 

2. That such fees shall apply to the above services and to the Animal Services Ordinance in 

effect at the time of the provision of the services for which the fees are charged and that 

the Board may amend the fees schedule by Resolution from time to time without necessity 

of additionally amending the Animal Services Ordinance then in effect.  

 

3. That this Fee Schedule shall take effect immediately upon passage of this Resolution on 

September 16, 2021. 

 

DATED, at Town of Foxfield, Colorado, this _______day of _______________________, 

2021. 

 

 

 

             

Lisa Jones, Mayor  

 

 

ATTEST:        

 

 

      

Randi Gallivan, Town Clerk  

 

 

 

 



  Item # 6b 

 
 

MEMORANDUM 

 
TO:  Mayor Jones and Members of the Board 
 
FROM:  Karen Proctor, Town Administrator 
 
DATE:  September 2, 2021 
 
RE: Text Messaging Alert Options 
 
 
DISCUSSION 
The Board requested information and options for a text messaging to send alerts to the 
residents. 
 
Staff looked into many options including EZ Texting, Textline, ZipWhip, Slick Text, PageGate and 
Ring Central.  Some of these services allow texts to be sent from a computer; others require a 
cell phone.  Some limit the number of texts that can be sent and some are unlimited.  The 
average cost for each is about $25/month.  
 
Based on the research, Staff is suggesting the Town try Ring Central.  The cost is $27.99/month, 
the messages can be sent from the computer so we do not need to purchase a Town cell 
phone, and it allows unlimited texting. 
 



  Item # 6c 

 

 

MEMORANDUM 

 
TO:  Mayor Jones and Members of the Board 
 
FROM:  Karen Proctor, Town Administrator 
 
DATE:  September 2, 2021 
 
RE: Open Space Clean Up 
 
 
DISCUSSION: 
Following are some items for discussion:  
 
Landscaping-  
Attached as Exhibit A is the proposal received from Terracare for the following work in the 

Open Space: 

• Removal of all underbrush, existing sprouts, dead trees and disposal of all debris. 

• Prune existing living trees and deadwood and raise to 8’ clearance from ground. 

• After pruning, spray sprouts (suckers) in 2022 three times to eliminate / minimize 
additional growth. 

The initial pruning and removal are proposed to be done in the fall to winter months for easier 

access to work zone and lessen the chances of happening upon things that bite. 

The total cost is $24,540.  The current Open Space Fund balance is $163,766.  These funds can 

be used for this project. 

Staff contacted Mile High Flood District to see if they had any concerns regarding this work 

and/or if they provided any service to help with the cleanup.  As of the writing of this memo, no 

response has been received. 

Would the Board like to accept this bid?  Or would the Board like staff to contact additional 

arborists for bids? 

 
 
 
 



  Item # 6c 

Graffiti- 
The majority of the Board has approved the posting of a sign in the pedestrian tunnel saying, 

"Whoever is tagging this wall, we'd like to have you paint a full mural for us. Please call 303-

680-1544".  Staff can make the signs and is seeking a volunteer from the Board to post the signs 

at each end of the tunnel. 

 
EXHIBITS: 
Exhibit A: Terracare Associates Proposal 
  



clerk
Typewritten Text
Exhibit A




